
  

  M-1 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Advisory Board held a regular 1 
meeting on Thursday, September 22, 2011 at the Babe James Community Center, 201 2 
North Myrtle Avenue, New Smyrna Beach, Florida.  Joseph Darrisaw, Chairperson, 3 
called the meeting to order at 6:14 p.m. 4 
 5 

ROLL CALL 6 
 7 

The following members answered to roll call: 8 
Joseph Darrisaw 9 

Gwendolyn Lee Jenkins Rainge 10 
Jacqueline Dianna Wadley 11 

Mildred White 12 
 13 
 14 
Melvin Brown, Sr. was absent.  15 
 16 
Jacquelyn Morgan entered the meeting at 6:29 p.m. 17 
 18 
Also present was Gail Henrikson, Planning Manager, Kerry-Anne Purkiss and Shirley 19 
Green of the KC Society, and members of the public. 20 
 21 

 23 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 22 

Regular Meeting August 25, 2011 24 
 25 
Mr. Rainge made a motion to approve the minutes as amended, seconded by Ms. 26 
White.  Motion passed, 3-1. Ms. White dissented due to lack of information. 27 
 28 

A. 
NEW BUSINESS 29 

 31 
Presentation by KC Society on Status of Teen Stipend Program 30 

Ms. Kerry-Anne Purkiss addressed the Board and spoke about the Teen Stipend 32 
Program. She stated that it is continuing along with training and workshops and 33 
volunteering. However, since school started, the program has slowed down. There have 34 
been a total of seventeen kids who have participated in the program.  However, some 35 
teens left and were replaced by other teens.  She stated that five of the teen stipend 36 
recipients have also found paid employment.  37 
 38 
Ms. White asked how the students are selected. 39 
 40 
Ms. Purkiss stated that an application is completed along with a permission slip and 41 
waiver form. The parents must complete a permission slip for trips and a medical 42 
authorization form. The students go through a two-step interview process. 43 
 44 
Ms. White asked how many teens would be hired. 45 
 46 
Ms. Purkiss stated that according to the CDBG grant only thirteen teens can be hired. 47 
 48 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-2 

Ms. White asked what happened if there were more than thirteen applications received.  1 
She asked for clarification as to how it was determined which teens are hired.  2 
 3 
Ms. Purkiss stated that initially there were less than thirteen applications so they 4 
continued to have sessions until they received more than thirteen applications. Some of 5 
the teens did not like the pay and were no longer interested, which left only thirteen 6 
applications. She stated that for any additional applications, the next person on the list 7 
will replace a vacant position. 8 
 9 
Mr. Darrisaw asked Ms. Purkiss if she was the only one involved in the interviews.  10 
 11 
Ms. Purkiss stated yes. 12 
 13 
Mr. Darrisaw stated his concern that no one else was involved in the interview process. 14 
He asked why Ms. Purkiss was the only person involved. 15 
 16 
Ms. Purkiss stated that it is not a qualifying interview because everyone qualifies who 17 
fills out and meet the criteria. The first thirteen people who applied were hired.  She 18 
stated that when there is an opening the next person on the list will fill it so there is no 19 
favoritism. 20 
 21 
Ms. White asked whether everyone in the program was required to be on food stamps. 22 
 23 
Ms. Purkiss stated no, but CDBG required that fifty percent of the participants be on 24 
food stamps.  She stated that families that qualified for food stamps were considered to 25 
be of low- to moderate-income. 26 
 27 
Ms. Rainge asked why two permission slips are necessary. 28 
 29 
Ms. Shirley Green addressed the Board and stated that one is for the general 30 
membership application for KC Society and the other is for different programs that the 31 
teen wants to participate in. 32 
 33 
Ms. Rainge asked questions about the application. 34 
 35 
Ms. Green explained that the purpose of the application is to be used as a learning tool, 36 
in order to familiarize teens with the information required on a standard job application.  37 
 38 
A discussion was held regarding the application. During the discussion a question was 39 
asked about the minimum age required to participate in the program. The response was 40 
that the teens had to be at least fourteen years old.  41 
 42 
Mr. Darrisaw asked questions about the reports such as where the activities took place. 43 
 44 
Ms. Purkiss explained the activities were at various places and listed several of the 45 
places.  46 
 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-3 

Mr. Darrisaw asked what activities take place at the Babe James Community Center 1 
and when they take place.  2 
 3 
Ms. Purkiss stated that they meet at the Babe James Community Center on Tuesdays 4 
and Thursdays from 6 to 9. She stated that this did not occur every week if it was during 5 
the summer time.  6 
 7 
Mr. Darrisaw asked what activities took place at the Babe James Community Center on 8 
Tuesdays and Thursdays.  9 
 10 
Ms. Purkiss stated that the interviewing skills seminar took place in July. 11 
 12 
Ms. White asked how demographics and income levels are identified. 13 
 14 
Ms. Purkiss stated that she is required to complete an income verification form. 15 
 16 
Ms. White asked how the teen mentors are selected. 17 
 18 
Ms. Purkiss explained how training is provided through the mentoring process. 19 
 20 
Ms. White asked about the percentage of activities completed and why it was left blank 21 
on the form. 22 
 23 
Ms. Purkiss stated that there would be an extension of the sub-recipient agreement with 24 
the City for an additional six months. 25 
 26 
Ms. Henrikson stated that the extension is at the discretion of the City Commission. 27 
 28 
Ms. Purkiss stated that because the program was started late that it was her 29 
understanding that there would be a six month extension.  30 
 31 
Ms. White asked Ms. Purkiss why she did not estimate the percent of the project that 32 
was completed to date. 33 
 34 
Ms. Purkiss stated that the percentage information was always filled out for her because 35 
she was not knowledgeable enough to fill out that information. 36 
 37 
Ms. Rainge asked about the completion date and asked if any of the teens will be kept 38 
or would new teens be brought in. 39 
 40 
Ms. Purkiss stated that some of the teens can remain in the program if they have not 41 
found employment or if they need more help in training. 42 
 43 
Carol Baker, 532 North Myrtle Avenue, addressed the Board and stated her concern 44 
that if the program is to be productive, then there needs to be more than thirteen teen 45 
stipends. She stated that her children where in the KC Society when it first began two 46 
years ago she was not pleased with the program and took her children out of it. She has 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-4 

a grandchild that recently joined the program and stated that she has never seen a 1 
permission slip or a check stub and felt that parents needed to be more aware. She 2 
stated a concern about falsifying permission slips. 3 
 4 
Ms. Purkiss stated that all of the forms are on file and are available to be reviewed. She 5 
said she would have no idea if a form was falsified. She said the KC Society has an 6 
open door policy and any parent who has a concern is welcome to address it with the 7 
KC Society. 8 
 9 
Gail Evans addressed the Board and stated that her concern about Saturday 10 
workshops. 11 
 12 
Ms. Purkiss stated that it is always best to contact the person in charge with a concern. 13 
She stated that she has never told a child if they don’t show up they don’t get paid. She 14 
discussed how the workshops are held.  15 
 16 
Ms. Evans asked how long the workshops last on Saturday. 17 
 18 
Ms. Purkiss stated an hour and a half maximum.  19 
 20 
A discussion was held regarding issues Ms. Evans had with her children being in the 21 
program.  22 
 23 
Charlena Felter addressed the Board and stated that she drove the teens to Busch 24 
Gardens during a field trip. 25 
 26 
Donna Gray-Banks asked if the Busch Gardens trip was part of the CDBG teen stipend 27 
program. 28 
 29 
Ms. Purkiss stated absolutely not. 30 
 31 
Ms. Gray-Banks stated that they are there about the teen stipend program and said if 32 
there is an issue with the KC Society programs then the Board shouldn’t concern 33 
themselves about that. She said that questions about what goes on during the KC 34 
Society general programs should not be discussed at this venue. 35 
 36 
Ms. Rainge stated that part of the problem is that the Board does not know what part of 37 
the KC Society’s programs are conducted as part of the CDBG grant and which are not. 38 
 39 
Ms. White stated that she understood that there is a line between KC Society and the 40 
teen stipend program.  She asked whether the teen stipend recipients met on Tuesday 41 
and Thursday. 42 
 43 
Ms. Purkiss stated that the teen stipend program ran during the day. 44 
 45 
Ms. White asked for clarification that the KC Society is group for teens, but that it is not 46 
part of the CDBG teen stipend program. 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-5 

 1 
There was general discussion about the summer teen stipend program and the field trip 2 
to Busch Gardens. 3 
 4 
Ms. Purkiss stated that as a reward the teens were taken on a field trip and were not 5 
paid.  She stated that the trip to Bush Gardens was not paid for through the teen stipend 6 
program. 7 
 8 
Mr. Darrisaw asked if the program location during the summer was at Solid Rock 9 
Church. 10 
 11 
Ms. Purkiss stated yes. 12 
 13 
Mr. Darrisaw asked if a permission form was sent home to parents each time the teens 14 
left the premises of Solid Rock. 15 
 16 
Ms. Purkiss stated no.  17 
 18 
Ms. Rainge discussed verifying permission slips with parents. 19 
 20 
Ms. White suggested a parent and child meeting. 21 
 22 
Ms. Purkiss stated that parents were asked to meet with KC Society representatives 23 
and only that two parents showed up. 24 
 25 
Ms. White stated that it should be mandatory for the parent and child meeting and the 26 
child would not be able to participate unless the parent attends the meeting. 27 
 28 
Mr. Darrisaw stated that both the parent and the child should be at the meeting. 29 
 30 
Ms. Purkiss stated that there was a parent that refused to participate.  31 
 32 
Ms. Green stated that volunteers are welcome and she would like to have more support 33 
from everyone.  34 
 35 
Ms. Evans addressed her concern about supervision and stated that there should be 36 
more adult supervisors. 37 
 38 
[Inaudible] stated there are at least four adults at every function. 39 
 40 
Ms. Purkiss stated that Ms. Evans is addressing KC Society activities that have nothing 41 
to do with the teen stipend program and would be happy to address the issue with her 42 
at a later time.  43 
 44 
Ms. Green discussed the types of activities that are held during the different programs 45 
that are offered.  46 
 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-6 

Ms. Green stated that the CDBG has specific requirements for the children to be part of 1 
the teen stipend program. She said that not everyone on the West side receives food 2 
stamps, but for those that do, not all of them want the public to know so it may be hard 3 
to get thirteen teens to be able to participate.  4 
 5 
Ms. Rainge suggested a letter to be mailed out and addressed to every parent, but not 6 
have the letterhead on the outside of the envelope so the teen won’t know who the letter 7 
is from. 8 
 9 
Chanal Mitchell addressed the Board and directed his question to Ms. Purkiss and 10 
asked if the grant money is used for any of the general programs of the KC Society. 11 
 12 
Ms. Purkiss stated that those activities privately funded.  13 
 14 
Ms. Mitchell asked whether Ms. Purkiss was paid for administering the KC Society 15 
programs. 16 
 17 
Ms. Purkiss stated that she is not paid. 18 
 19 
Mr. Darrisaw asked if the funds from the grant for the stipend are only used during the 20 
summer or throughout the year. 21 
 22 
Ms. Purkiss stated that the funds are used until they are exhausted. 23 
 24 
Mr. Darrisaw asked that a schedule of activities be provided for the next meeting.  25 
 26 
Habbiballah [last name unknown], addressed the Board and directed his concern to Ms. 27 
Green regarding “internal concern” and discussed his concern with problems needing to 28 
be addressed.  29 
 30 
Ms. Henrikson asked Ms. Purkiss how the teens would be able to work 20 hours of 31 
volunteer time into their school schedules. 32 
 33 
Ms. Purkiss stated that school will be counted towards their 20 hours since they cannot 34 
allow the teens to volunteer 20 hours on top of homework time.  She stated that they will 35 
ensure the 20 hours are fulfilled including having meetings on Saturdays.  36 
 37 
Ms. Henrikson stated that Donna King from Volusia County Community Assistance, who 38 
was present at the meeting, had informed her that the hours spent in school could not 39 
be used to satisfy the teen stipend program requirements. 40 
 41 
Ms. Evans stated that she had a problem with having teens participate in the stipend 42 
program on Saturdays during the school year. 43 
 44 
Ms. Evans stated that if meetings are to be held on Saturdays then she wants a copy of 45 
all the meetings, workshops and the times.  46 
 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-7 

A discussion was held among the Board and public participants regarding issues that 1 
were previously addressed during the meeting. These issues were stated as being of no 2 
concern to the CDBG, but as an internal matter with the KC Society. 3 
 4 
Mr. Darrisaw stated that the issues can be brought to the Concerned Citizens of the 5 
Black African-American Community meeting held next Monday at 10:30 a.m. 6 
 7 
Mr. Darrisaw suggested to those who have any issues or concerns to address them in a 8 
letter to the Concerned Citizens of the Black African-American Community so that the 9 
issues can be addressed at the meeting. 10 
 11 
Ms. Rainge stated a concern that if there is a problem in the community and CDBG are 12 
being used for this activity, then the Board needs to be aware of any concerns that need 13 
to be addressed. 14 
 15 
Ms. Morgan addressed the forms used by the KC Society and suggested that under the 16 
parent information section of the form there should be an area for the parent address so 17 
activity information can be sent to all of the parents to avoid any miscommunication. 18 
 19 
Ms. Green stated they are willing to take any constructive criticism. 20 
 21 
Ms. Wadley suggested requesting a copy of a birth certificate to verify age and also to 22 
state trip information on the permission slip forms to keep parents informed.  23 
 24 
B. 
Mr. Darrisaw addressed the Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2012/2013.  26 

FY 2012/2013 Action Plan – Activity #5 25 

 27 
Ms. Henrikson stated that this item was continued from the August 25th meeting.  At that 28 
meeting, there was discussion among the Board members regarding Activity #5.  29 
Specifically, there was a question as to whether or not there was a need for demolition 30 
in the neighborhood and if not, should the funds be allocated to a different project.  31 
 32 
Ms. Rainge addressed her concern about tearing down a house and keeping the lot 33 
clean. 34 
 35 
The Board asked Ms. Henrikson if $1,000 can be set aside for mowing services. 36 
 37 
Ms. Henrikson stated that lawn mowing is not eligible.  38 
 39 
The Board asked whether the City could cut the grass and then place a lien on the 40 
property. 41 
 42 
Ms. Henrikson stated that it would be separate from this program. A discussion 43 
followed. 44 
 45 
Ms. Rainge made a motion to keep Activity #5 at 11 percent, seconded by Ms. 46 
White. The vote passed unanimously, 5-0. 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-8 

 1 
Mr. Darrisaw stated that since Mr. Brown was unable to attend the meeting he had 2 
forwarded a letter to the Board Members addressing eleven possible projects that he 3 
would like to address. Mr. Darrisaw stated that discussion by the Board on this issue 4 
could either be tabled until Mr. Brown was able to attend or they could discuss these 5 
items at the current meeting.  6 
 7 
Ms. Henrikson asked if the proposals are addressing fiscal year 2012/2013 because 8 
she didn’t think any of the items are listed on the action plan and some of the items may 9 
or may not be eligible.  10 
 11 
Ms. White made a motion to continue discussion of this item until the October 12 
2011 meeting, seconded by Ms. Morgan.  Motion passed unanimously, 5-0.  13 
 14 
C. 
Ms. Henrikson presented the draft application to the Board for their review and 16 
comments.   17 

Review of Draft CDBG Public Service Application 15 

 18 
Ms. White noted that a correction was needed to state that the funds could be used 19 
between October 1, 2012 and September 30, 2013, not September 30, 2012. 20 
 21 
No other Board members had comments or corrections on the application. 22 
 23 
Motion by Ms. Rainge, seconded by Ms. Wadley, to approve the application as 24 
amended.  Motion passed unanimously, 5-0. 25 
 26 
D. 
Ms. Henrikson addressed the Board and provided an summary of the actions that have 28 
occurred on these two projects.  She stated that because neither the track nor the 29 
boxing program was a 501(c)3 organization, they were ineligible to receive CDBG funds 30 
directly. 31 

Status of Track and Boxing Programs 27 

 32 
Ms. Henrikson stated that she had contacted David Adkins at the Police Athletic League 33 
(PAL) about operating the two programs.  She stated that Mr. Adkins had met with the 34 
PAL Board and, while they were willing to take on the track program, they were not 35 
interested in having the boxing program.   36 
 37 
Ms. Henrikson stated that at this point, there has been no action on these two programs 38 
and she was requesting direction from the Board as to whether the funds from these 39 
two programs should be reallocated to another project. 40 
 41 
The consensus of the Board was that Pastor Walter Hill and Wonzel Morris should be 42 
present at the October CDBG meeting to discuss the status of their programs. 43 
 44 
Motion by Ms. Rainge, seconded by Ms. White, to continue this item to the 45 
October 2011 CDBG Advisory Board meeting.  Motion passed unanimously, 5-0. 46 
 47 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADVISORY BOARD 
SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 
MINUTES 
 

  M-9 

E. 
A meeting date of October 20, 2011, was selected by the Board for the next meeting. 2 

Establishment of Regular Meeting Dates and Times 1 

 3 

None. 5 
COMMENTS OR STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 4 

 6 

Ms. Henrikson presented the Board with follow-up information in response to inquiries at 8 
the August 25, 2011 Meeting. 9 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS BY THE STAFF 7 

 10 

With there being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 12 
ADJOURNMENT 11 


	UAPPROVAL OF MINUTES
	UREPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS BY THE STAFF
	UADJOURNMENT

